
 

 

 

 

 

Meeting of  

East Sussex County Council 

on Tuesday, 11 July 2017 

at 10.00 am 

 
 
 
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, 
this meeting will be broadcast live on its website and the record archived for future viewing. 
The broadcast / record is accessible at: 
www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm 
 



 



 

EAST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 
To the Members of the County Council  
 
You are summoned to attend a meeting of the East Sussex County Council to be held at Council 
Chamber, County Hall, Lewes, on Tuesday, 11 July 2017 at 10.00 am to transact the following 
business 
 
1   Minutes of the meeting held on 23 May 2017  (Pages 5 - 16) 

 
2   Apologies for absence   

 
3   Chairman's business   

 
4   Questions from members of the public   

 
5   Report of the Cabinet  (Pages 17 - 32) 

 
6   Report of the Governance Committee  (Pages 33 - 34) 

 
7   Report of the Children's Services Scrutiny Committee  (Pages 35 - 38) 

 
8   Report of the Economy, Transport and Environment Scrutiny Committee  (Pages 

39 - 42) 
 

9   Report of the Standards Committee  (Pages 43 - 44) 
 

10   Questions from County Councillors   
 

(a) Oral questions to Cabinet Members 
(b) Written Questions of which notice has been given pursuant to Standing Order 

44 
 
 

11   Report of the East Sussex Fire Authority  (to follow) 
 

 
 

Note: There will be a period for collective prayers and quiet reflection in the Council 
Chamber from 9.30 am to 9.45 am. The Chairman would be delighted to be joined by any 
members of staff and Councillors who wish to attend. 
 
County Hall  
St Anne's Crescent  
LEWES  
East Sussex BN7 1UE  
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive 3 July 2017 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

MINUTES 

 

EAST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 
MINUTES of a MEETING of the EAST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL held at Council 
Chamber, County Hall, Lewes on 23 MAY 2017 at 10.00 am 
 
 

Present    Councillors John Barnes MBE, Matthew Beaver, 
Colin Belsey, Nick Bennett, Bill Bentley, Phil Boorman, 
Bob Bowdler, Tania Charman, Charles Clark, Martin Clarke, 
Godfrey Daniel, Philip Daniel, Angharad Davies, 
Chris Dowling, Claire Dowling, Stuart Earl, Simon Elford, 
David Elkin, Nigel Enever, Michael Ensor (Chairman), 
Kathryn Field, Gerard Fox, Roy Galley, Keith Glazier, 
Darren Grover, Carolyn Lambert, Tom Liddiard, Laurie Loe, 
Carl Maynard, Ruth O'Keeffe MBE, Sarah Osborne, 
Pat Rodohan, Phil Scott, Jim Sheppard, Daniel Shing, 
Stephen Shing, Alan Shuttleworth, Rupert Simmons, 
Andy Smith, Bob Standley, Richard Stogdon, Colin 
Swansborough, Barry Taylor, Sylvia Tidy, David Tutt, 
John Ungar, Steve Wallis, Trevor Webb and 
Francis Whetstone 
 

 
1 To elect a Chairman of the County Council  
 
1.1 The following motion was moved by Councillor Glazier and SECONDED –  
 

‘To elect Councillor Ensor to serve as Chairman of the County Council for the 
ensuing year.’ 

 
1.2 There being no other nominations, the Assistant Chief Executive put the motion to the 
vote and declared Councillor Ensor elected as Chairman of the County Council for the ensuing 
year. Councillor Ensor made a declaration of acceptance of office and took the Chair. 
 
Councillor Ensor in the Chair 
 
1.3 The Chairman thanked the Council for electing him as Chairman. 
 
2 To appoint a Vice Chairman of the County Council  
 
2.1 The following motion was moved by Councillor Glazier and SECONDED –  
 
  ‘To appoint Councillor Pragnell to serve as Vice Chairman of the County Council 
for the ensuing year.’ 
 
2.2 There being no other nominations, the Chairman put the motion to the vote and declared 
Councillor Pragnell appointed as Vice Chairman of the County Council for the ensuing year. The 
Chairman reported that Councillor Pragnell had been unwell and was unable to attend the 
meeting but would sign his declaration of acceptance of office, witnessed by the Chief 
Executive, when he was next at County Hall. 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



MINUTES 

 

 

3 Minutes of the meeting held on 21 March 2017  
 
3.1 RESOLVED – to confirm the minutes of the meeting of the County Council held on 21 
March 2017 as a correct record 
 
4 Apologies for absence  
 
4.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Pragnell 
 
5 Notice of the Returning Officer certifying the election of County Councillors for the 
various electoral divisions  
 
5.1 The Council agreed to receive the Notice of the Returning Officer certifying the election, 
on 4 May 2017, of County Councillors for the various electoral divisions in East Sussex. 
 
6 Chairman's business  
 
WELCOME 
 
6.1 The Chairman congratulated and welcomed all members to the first meeting of the 
County Council following the elections. 
    
CHAIRMAN’S BUSINESS 
 
6.2     The Chairman reported that he had attended a number of engagements since the last 
meeting including: the Conquest MRI scanner appeal reception, the Unsung heroes celebration, 
the Wayfinder Women’s Conference, a show by the East Sussex School of Performing Arts and 
was present at the Royal visit to St Mary’s school. He has attended a number of Mayor making 
ceremonies including: Winchelsea, Rye, Telscombe, Bexhill and Lewes, had attended the 
Mayor of Newhaven’s Charity dinner, the High Sheriff’s summer reception, a service at 
Chichester Cathedral to mark the 50th anniversary of the modern Hospice movement and had 
hosted a tea for Ashdown Forest staff and volunteers. The Vice Chairman has also attended a 
number of events. 
 
PRAYERS 
 
6.3          The Chairman thanked the Reverend Steve Daughtery for leading the prayers this 
morning. 
 
PETITIONS 
 
6.4       The Chairman informed the Council that immediately before the meeting the 
following petitions had been received from members: 
 
Councillor Enever - calling on the County Council to address congestion on 

the A259 South Coast . 
 
Councillor O’Keeffe 

 
- calling on the County Council to divest the East Sussex 
Pension Fund from investment in fossil fuels 

  
Councillor Stephen Shing - calling on the County Council to progress its traffic 

calming proposal in Alfriston beyond the design stage 
and instead to work with local residents on proposals 
presented at the exhibition weekend in April 

  
 
 

Page 6



MINUTES 

 

 

7 To appoint the Leader of the Council (and Chair of the Cabinet)  
 
7.1    The following motion was moved by Councillor Tidy and SECONDED –  
 
 ‘to nominate Councillor Glazier as Leader of the Council (and Chair of the Cabinet) for a 
four year period up to the post election annual meeting.’ 

 
7.2 There being no other nominations, the Chairman put the motion to the vote and declared 
Councillor Glazier elected as Leader of the Council (and Chair of the Cabinet) for a four year 
period up to the post election annual meeting. 
 
8 The Cabinet  
 
8.1 In accordance with the Constitution, Councillor Glazier presented a written record to the 
Council of his appointments to the Cabinet, their portfolios and his delegations of executive 
functions. A copy of the Leader’s report is attached to these minutes. 
 
9 Reports  
 
9.1 The Chairman of the County Council, having called over the reports set out in the 
agenda, reserved the following paragraphs for discussion: 
 
Governance Committee   - paragraphs 1 and 2 
 
NON-RESERVED PARAGRAPHS 
 
9.2 On the motion of the Chairman of the County Council, the Council ADOPTED those 
paragraphs in the reports of the Committees that had not been reserved for discussion. 
 
 
10 Report of the Governance Committee  
 
10.1 Councillor Glazier moved the reserved paragraphs of the report. 
 
10.2 The motions were CARRIED after debate 
 
11 Appointments to Committees and Sub Committees   
 
11.1 Councillor Bennett moved, and it was seconded, that appointments be made to the 
Committees and Sub-committees, listed in item 10 of the agenda, in accordance with the list of 
nominations from political groups which was circulated in the Council Chamber. 
 
11.2 The motion was CARRIED 
 
12 Appointment of Members to other Committees and Panels  
 
12.1 Councillor Bennett moved, and it was seconded, that members be appointed to serve on 
the Committees and Panels listed in item 11 of the agenda, in accordance with the political 
balance provisions and the list of nominations from political groups which was circulated in the 
Council Chamber. 

 
12.2 The motion was CARRIED. 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



MINUTES 

 

 

13 Confirmation of the continuation of other bodies   
 
13.1 Councillor Bennett moved and it was seconded, that the bodies listed in agenda item 12 
be continued, that the political balance provisions shall not apply to these Panels and that 
members be appointed by the Chief Executive as the need arises. 
 
13.2 The motion was CARRIED (with no member voting against). 
 
 
14 Appointments to the Transport and Student Support Panel and the Education 
Performance Panel  
 
14.1 Councillor Bennett moved, and it was seconded, to agree that the political balance 
provisions would not apply to the membership of the Transport and Student Support Panel and 
the Education Performance Panel and that members be appointed to the Panels in accordance 
with the list of nominations from political groups which was circulated in the Council Chamber. 
 
14.2 The motion was CARRIED (with no member voting against) 
 
15        Appointment of Chairs and Vice Chairs of Committees  
 
15.1 The following motion, moved by Councillor Bennett and seconded, was CARRIED: 

 
‘To appoint the following members to positions listed below’: 
 

Committee 
 

Chair Vice-Chair 

Regulatory 
 

Stogdon  

Adult Social Care and Community Safety 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

Davies Webb 

Audit, Best Value and Community Services 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

Swansborough Barnes 

Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee 
 

Galley Shuttleworth 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Belsey O’Keeffe 

Economy, Transport and Environment Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

Stogdon Claire Dowling 

Governance Committee 
 

Glazier  

Planning Committee 
 

Claire Dowling Taylor 

Pension Committee 
 

Stogdon  

Standards Committee Stogdon  

 
16 Questions from members of the public  
 
16.1    Copies of questions asked by Gabriel Carlyle from St Leonards on Sea,  Andrea 
Needham from Hastings and Vivian Carrick from Peacehaven and the answers from Councillor 
Stogdon (Chair of the Pension Committee) and Councillor Bennett (Lead Member for Transport 

Page 8



MINUTES 

 

 

and Environment) are attached to these minutes. Supplementary questions were asked and 
responded to. 
 
17 Cabinet' priorities for the forthcoming year  
 
17.1 Councillor Glazier outlined the Cabinet’s priorities for the forthcoming year.  The other 
Group Leaders commented on these, following which there was a debate 
 
18 Questions from County Councillors  
 
ORAL QUESTIONS TO CABINET MEMBERS 

 
18.1 The following members asked questions of the Lead Cabinet Members indicated and 
they responded: 
 

Questioner Respondent Subject 
 

Councillor Field Councillor Bennett Coordination of roadworks commissioned 
by Highways England and the County 
Council.   
 

Councillor Ungar Councillor Maynard The recruitment, training and retention of 
care workers in the independent sector 
 

Councillor Wallis 
 

Councillor Bennett  Turnover of Highway Stewards  
 

Councillor Godfrey 
Daniel  

Councillor Bennett The lack of schemes in Hastings in the 
footway programme of works for 2017/18     
 

Councillor Stephen 
Shing 

Councillor Bennett Policy in relation to repair of potholes   

 
Councillor Scott 

 
Councillor Bennett 

 
Cost and number of claims arising from 
damage to vehicles resulting  from 
potholes on the highway 

 
 
WRITTEN QUESTIONS PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER 44 
 
18.2 One written question was received from Councillor Whetstone for the Lead Member for 
Transport and Environment. The question and answer are attached to these minutes.  

 
 
 
 
 

THE CHAIRMAN DECLARED THE MEETING CLOSED AT 11.57 am 
_________________________ 

The reports referred to are included in the minute book 
_________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



MINUTES 

 

 

Delegations approved by the Leader of the Council – 23 May 2017  
 

(a) names of the County Councillors appointed to the Cabinet 
 
The Cabinet comprises the following members 
 

Portfolio Appointment 

Strategic Management and Economic Development  Councillor Keith Glazier 

Resources  Councillor David Elkin 

Communities and Safety Councillor Bill Bentley 

Economy Councillor Rupert Simmons 

Transport and Environment Councillor Nick Bennett 

Adult Social Care and Health  Councillor Carl Maynard  

Children and Families (designated statutory Lead 

Member for Children’s Services) 

Councillor Sylvia Tidy 

Education and Inclusion, Special Educational Needs 

and Disability 

Councillor Bob Standley 

(b) the extent of any authority delegated to cabinet members individually as portfolio 
holders will remain as set out in the Constitution of  the County Council 
eastsussex.gov.uk/constitution or alternatively hard copies are available at County Hall, 
Lewes (please contact Andy Cottell – 01273 481955) and below. 
 
In overall terms the areas of responsibility for each portfolio holder includes the following 
(subject to any subsequent amendment by the Leader at his discretion) principal services to be 
interpreted broadly. In accordance with the wishes of the Leader, principal services are not to be 
construed restrictively. In the event of any doubt in connection to a decision made by a Lead 
Member, the Leader confirms that he has delegated full executive authority to that decision 
maker: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10

https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/about/keydocuments/constitution


MINUTES 

 

 

Portfolio Scope 

Strategic Management and 
Economic Development  

 Chairing and managing the executive and its 
work 

 

 Any executive function including overall 
strategy and policy for the Council  

 

 Principal service area responsibilities: 
Communications  
Local Enterprise Partnership  
Policy and Performance 
East Sussex Better Together/Health and 
Wellbeing Board  
Equalities 
South East Seven Partnership 
Transport for South East (SNTB) 
Democratic Services 
all ancillary activities 

Resources  Any executive function including strategy and 
policy for all corporate resources matters 

 

 Principal service area responsibilities: 
Financial Management  
Property asset management 
Risk management 
Procurement 
Internal audit 
ICT 
Personnel and Training 
Legal  
Orbis  
all ancillary activities 

Communities and Safety  Any executive function including strategy and 
policy for all Communities and Community 
Safety matters 

 

 Principal service area responsibilities: 
Archives and records 
Community Safety 
Coroner services 
Customer Services 
Emergency Planning 
Gypsies and travellers 
Libraries 
Registration Services 
Road Safety 
Trading Standards 
Voluntary Sector 
all ancillary activities 

Page 11



MINUTES 

 

 

Economy  Any executive function including strategy and 
policy for all economic development and 
regeneration and all ancillary activities 

 

 Principal service area responsibilities 
Economic Development  
Culture 
Skills (shared with Education) 
all ancillary activities 

 
Transport and Environment  Any executive function including strategy and 

policy for all Transport and Environmental 
matters 
 

 Principal service area responsibilities: 
Operational services 
Planning and developmental control 
Transport strategy  
Environmental and waste strategy 
all ancillary activities 

 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 

 Any executive function including strategy and 
policy for all Adult Social Care and Public 
Health matters 
 

 Principal service area responsibilities: 
Services for vulnerable adults including older 
people, learning disability, physical disability, 
mental health, public health and all ancillary 
activities 

 
Children and Families  Any executive function including overall 

strategy and policy for all Children’s Services 
(social care) matters 

 

 Principal service area responsibilities: 
Child protection and family support 
Fostering and adoption for children 
Residential care for children 
Other aspects of social care for children 
Youth justice  
Youth service  
all ancillary activities 

Page 12



MINUTES 

 

 

Education and Inclusion, 
Special Educational Needs 
and Disability 
  
  

 

 Any executive function including strategy and 
policy for all Children’s Services (education) 
matters 

 

 Principal service area responsibilities: 
Quality and standards in educational 
establishments 
Special educational needs  
School admissions and transport 
Early years and childcare 
School organisation and place planning 
Skills (shared with Economy) 
all ancillary activities 
 

 
 

(c)  appointment to the position of Deputy Leader  
 
Councillor Elkin to be appointed Deputy Leader of the County Council 
 
(d) the terms of reference and constitution of the Cabinet and any executive 
committees together with the names of cabinet members appointed to them 
 
The terms of reference and constitution of the Cabinet and any executive committees will 
remain as currently set out in the Constitution of the Council 
 
(e) the nature and extent of any delegation of executive functions to local 
committees 

There is no delegation of executive functions to local committees 

 

(f) the nature and extent of any delegation to officers 

 
The delegations of executive functions to Officers will be as set out in the Constitution. The 
delegations to Officers can be viewed via the following link: 
Constitution - Delegations to Officers 
 or alternatively hard copies are available at County Hall, Lewes (please contact Andy Cottell – 
01273 481955) 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Councillor Keith Glazier 
Leader of the Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/media/7710/3-final-part-3-table-6-delegations-to-officers.pdf


MINUTES 

 

 

QUESTION FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 
 
1. Question from Gabriel Carlyle, St Leonards on Sea, East Sussex 
 
The West Yorkshire Pension Fund has recently adopted an Investment Strategy 
Statement that not only 'recognises the risks and opportunities [to the Fund] associated 
with climate change' but also commits the Fund to 'seek to measure carbon exposure 
within [its] equity portfolio and reduce that exposure over time.' Given the well known 
risks associated with investments in fossil fuels – future regulation to limit carbon 
emissions, the increasing competitiveness of renewables, and the growth of new 
technologies – what steps is the East Sussex Pension Committee taking to measure the 
carbon exposure within the East Sussex Pension Fund's equity portfolio? 
 

Response by the Chair of the Pension Committee 
 

Following a detailed discussion regarding fossil fuel investments including wider 
Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance (ESG) responsibilities, and the 
approval of the Fund Investment Strategy Statement by the Pension Committee at its in 
February 2017, the Committee and the Pension Board have scheduled 13 June 2017 
for a joint training session focusing on ESG responsibilities.  This session will be 
facilitated in conjunction with the investment managers, advisers and industry experts, 
to explore ESG (including Carbon and Fossil fuel) and the financial and/or non-financial 
impacts including options open to the Fund in relation to ESG investments.     
 
The Pension Committee is committed to an ongoing development of its ESG knowledge 
with particular emphasis on obtaining further information on the long term financial 
return in regard to fossil fuel investment, which will further be considered at the fund 
investment strategy day in July 2017. 
 

2.  Question from Andrea Needham, Hastings, East Sussex 
 
According to a recent assessment by the specialist asset manager Impax Asset 
Management, 'an analysis of the historical data shows that the financial risks involved in 
fossil-fuel divestment are minimal, and can be largely offset by substituting oil, gas and 
coal stocks with portfolios of more environmentally attractive alternatives. That these 
more environmentally attractive alternatives can also mitigate the large and growing 
financial risks of fossil fuel energy is the compelling win-win most investors seek in 
discharging their fiduciary duties.' Does the Pension Committee accept that it is possible 
for it divest the East Sussex Pension Fund from fossil fuels while still fulfilling its 
fiduciary duties? 
 
 
Response by the Chair of the Pension Committee 
 
As long term investors, having a fiduciary duty to over 70,000 members and 131 
employers within the East Sussex Pension Fund (ESPF), the Pension Committee takes 
its role of safeguarding the investment assets of the Fund very seriously.   As part of its 
responsibility, the Committee recognises that Environmental, Social and Corporate 
Governance (ESG) issues can have a material impact on the long term performance of 
the investments of the Pension Fund. 
  

Page 14



MINUTES 

 

 

The Pension Committee is committed to an ongoing development of its ESG knowledge 
with particular emphasis on obtaining further information on the long term financial 
risks/return in regard to fossil fuel investment, which will further be considered at the 
fund investment strategy day in July 2017. 
 

3.  Question from Vivian Carrick, Peacehaven, East Sussex 
 
I understand that East Sussex County Council submitted a bid named the ' Newhaven 
Movement, Access & Resilience Package' through South East Local Enterprise 
Partnership in July 2016, which included 'Rushey Hill Embankment Stabilisation' on the 
A259 South Coast Road. Please can you clarify the current status of this bid and 
whether this proposed project has been granted the appropriate funding? 
 
Response by the Lead Member for Transport and Environment 
 
The County Council submitted a bid to Government in July last year for Local Growth 
Fund monies via both the South East and Coast to Capital Local Enterprise 
Partnerships (LEPs) to deliver movement, access and network resilience schemes in 
the Newhaven, Seaford and Peacehaven area.   
 
The £12.96m bid for Local Growth Fund monies included seeking £6.2m towards the 
Rushey Hill embankment stabilisation and drainage enhancement scheme on the A259.  
These stabilisation works are required at Rushey Hill as the road was built on unstable 
ground, lacks suitable drainage and as a consequence the road is frequently in need of 
repair. 

 
Government announced the Local Growth Fund allocations for both LEPs earlier this 
year.  Unfortunately, the A259 movement, access and resilience package, which 
included the Rushey Hill scheme, was not successful in securing Local Growth Fund 
monies via either LEP.  
 
As a consequence, we are continuing to explore other funding options that may become 
available in order to deliver the Rushey Hill scheme on the A259. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



MINUTES 

 

 

WRITTEN QUESTIONS PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER 44 
 
1.  Question by Councillor Whetstone to the Lead Member for Transport and 
Environment    
 
Following recent discussion which showed a disagreement as to the exact position, 
could the Lead Member clarify as to whether there is a specific budget for the 
installation of dropped kerbs? If there is no such budget how are the installation of 
dropped kerbs to be funded? 
 
Answer by the Lead Member for Transport and Environment   
 
The County Council has not had a dedicated budget for the installation of dropped kerbs 
for a number of years now. However there are several ways in which new dropped 
kerbs can be funded: 
 
Dropped kerbs required as part of a wider highway scheme would be funded from the 
capital programme for local transport improvements. 
 
Dropped kerbs requested for safety reasons would be prioritised against other demands 
and if of sufficient priority would be funded from the road safety budget. 
 
If the installation of dropped kerbs is either not part of a wider highway scheme, or is not 
of sufficient safety priority to be funded from the road safety budget, but remains a 
priority for the local community, then an application may be made through the 
Community Match Initiative. In such cases the local community would need to commit to 
provide at least half of the funding required. Applications for dropped kerbs under the 
Community Match Initiative would have to be prioritised against all other requests for 
community match funding, and if successful  the County Council contribution would 
come from the Community Match funding allocation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 16



CABINET 

 

REPORT OF THE CABINET 
 

 
The Cabinet met on 6 and 27 June 2017.  Attendance:- 
 
 Councillor Glazier (Chair) (2) 
 Councillors Bennett (2), Bentley (2), Elkin (2), Maynard (2), Simmons (2), Standley (2) and 

Tidy (2)    
 

1. Council Monitoring – Quarter Four 2016/17    
 

1.1 The Cabinet has considered a report on performance against the Council Plan, Revenue 
Budget, Capital Programme, Savings Plan and risks for 2016/17. Broad progress against the 
Council’s four strategic priority outcomes is summarised below and an overview of performance 
and finance data is provided in the Corporate Summary at Appendix 1. Strategic risks were 
reported at Appendix 7 and a detailed report for each department is provided in Appendices 2 to 
6.    

 
Overview of 2016/17 Council Plan and Budget 

 

1.2 2016/17 was the first year of a challenging 3-year Reconciling Policy, Performance and 
Resources (RPPR) medium-term planning period, requiring significant changes to service 
provision, demand management and savings if a balanced budget was to be achieved. The 
Council has focused on its key priorities and made good progress in many areas. 

 

1.3 We have continued to support vulnerable adults and children to stay safe and 
independent. Over 9,000 adults and 7,000 carers received support during the year. A Joint local 
area SEND inspection carried out by OSTED and CQC reported positively in December 2016 
on the services provided to children with disabilities and their families and the Council has been 
responsible for over 500 Looked After Children at any one time during the year. The number of 
families receiving a family support intervention as part of the Troubled Families programme in 
2016/17 was 876; this places our performance in the top 10% of local authorities nationally. At 
the same time as delivering services, good progress was made on a ground-breaking alliance 
agreement with health partners, under East Sussex Better Together (ESBT), which aims to help 
us to maintain sustainable services in the future through better integration of health and social 
care services. 

 

1.4 More detail of progress against each of our priority outcomes for 2016/17 is set out in 
paragraphs 1.13 to 1.26 below. Of the 67 Council Plan targets, 41 (61%) were achieved and 23 
(34%) were not achieved. 3 (5%) are carried over for reporting in quarter 1 of 2017/18, these are 
targets where action has been completed, but the year-end outturn data is not yet available to be 
reported. The outturn of 49 measures can be compared with the 2015/16 outturn. The 
performance improved or was at the maximum in 27 (55%) of these measures; 4 (8%) remained 
the same; 15 (31%) deteriorated; and 3 (6%) are carried over for reporting at quarter 1 2017/18. 

 

1.5 The outturn financial position is improved compared to that projected earlier in the year, as 
a result of mitigating actions taken, but still reflects the considerable pressure on service 
budgets. As shown in Appendix 1, nearly 80% of planned savings were achieved with almost all 
of the remainder still considered achievable, but delayed, and therefore have slipped to 
2017/18. At the end of the year the net service overspend was £3.3m compared to the £6.9m 
reported at quarter 3. The main changes from quarter 3 are: 

 

 Adult Social Care – an overspend of £2.9m (£4.7m at quarter 3). The main reason for the 
reduction is a one-off contribution of £1.5m from the CCGs within ESBT, which was at the 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



CABINET 

 

final stage of agreement and reported orally to members at quarter 3 but not included in 
the report. 

 Business Services underspend of £1.7m (£0.6m at quarter 3): the main reasons are a 
change in accounting practice for property maintenance (£0.5m) and increased savings 
from Orbis (£0.4m). 

 Children’s Services overspend of £2.5m (£3.0m at quarter 3): the main reasons are 
reductions in the overspends for Early Help and Social Care (£0.3m) and Communications 
Planning & Performance (£0.3m) but these were offset by pressures in Education and 
ISEND. 

 Communities, Economy & Transport underspend of £0.4m (£0.1m at quarter 3): the main 
reasons are early delivery of savings and increased income (£0.2m), staff vacancies and 
funding of additional work at Hastings Library from capital budgets (£0.1m) in Customer & 
Library Services. 

 

1.6 The underlying demand pressures affecting both Adult Social Care and Children’s 
Services were addressed as part of the RPPR process when updating the Medium Term 
Financial Plan (MTFP) in autumn 2016 and extra investment in both services was made in the 
2017/18 Budget. This will mitigate, but not fully remove, the risk of further overspend. 

 

1.7 Within centrally held budgets, and as previously reported at quarter 3, there is a pressure 
of £0.3m from the Council’s share of the East Sussex Business Rates Pool and Cap 
Compensation, loss of £0.2m from the Education Services Grant (ESG) and an underspend on 
the provision made for the cost of National Living Wage of £0.3m. The overall overspend on 
these centrally held budgets therefore amounts to £0.2m. Giving a total overspend of £3.5m. 

 

1.8 During the RPPR review of the MTFP, the opportunity was taken to review the Council’s 
policy for accounting for debt repayment, following changes in government rules. As reported at 
quarter 3 and as reflected in the 2017/18 Budget, this, and an overall review of treasury 
management budgets, has resulted in a significantly reduced charge to the revenue account. 
The final outturn is an underspend against the original budget of £8.3m rather than £8.1m 
forecast at quarter 3. 

 

1.9 The general contingency has been reduced slightly for bad debt, from £3.4m to £3.3m. 
Overall, there is therefore a General Fund surplus of £8.1m (comprising; service overspend of 
£3.3m (paragraph  1.5), overspend on centrally held budgets £0.2m (paragraph 1.7) offset by 
£3.3m general contingency and £8.3m treasury management (paragraph 1.8). The State of the 
County report elsewhere on this agenda describes the significant financial pressures facing the 
County Council over the next three years, and the Cabinet has agreed that the outturn surplus is 
used to mitigate those pressures. Specifically, it was agreed that £1.2m be set aside to smooth 
the 2018/19 profile and avoid an increased need for savings in that year, £1.1m be set aside to 
manage in-year pressures, notably the known shortfall in Business Rates and other pressures, 
and the remaining £5.8m is used to realise returns in future years through support for capital 
investment and/or reduced borrowing. Use of the surplus in this way will improve the 
sustainability of the Council’s finances, manage in-year risks and provide a full year future 
saving against the MTFP projections of at least £230,000 pa. 

 

1.10 The value of debt over 5 months at quarter 4 has increased marginally to £2.276m 
(2015/16 £2.190m). This is mainly as a result of higher Adult Social Care debt raised in 2016/17 
(£10.8m) compared to 2015/16 (£10.1m). 

 

1.11  The quarter 4 capital programme is monitored against the revised programme submitted 
to the Council in February; together with some minor net nil approved variations. The 
expenditure for the year was £79.6m against a budget of £93.3m, a variation to gross budget of 
£13.7m. Most of the variation is attributed to slippage of £13.4m, offset by £0.5m spend in 
advance mainly on Highways Structural Maintenance. In addition there was a £0.8m 
underspend, mainly due to a number of School Basic Need and temporary school 
accommodation projects, where the need for the project contingency did not materialise. The 
four largest value areas of slippage are:- 

 

 £1.9m on Queensway Gateway Road (ref. xvi appendix 5), 

Page 18



CABINET 

 

 £1.6m on the North Bexhill Access Road (ref. xv appendix 5), 
 

 £1.4m on Capital building improvements (ref. x appendix 3) 
 

 £1.2m Agile (ref. ix appendix 3). 
 

The Capital Strategy and Asset Management Board continues to review forecasting and 
profiling processes in order to improve management of the overall capital programme and 
reduce the extent of slippage. 

 

1.12  The Strategic Risk Register, Appendix 7, has been reviewed. Risk 8 (Capital Programme) 
has been updated and also has updated risk control responses. Risk 4 (Health), Risk 5 
(Reconciling Policy, Performance & Resources), Risk 6 (Local Economic Growth) and Risk 9 
(Workforce) all have updated risk control responses. A new risk (Cyber attack) has been added 
to the Strategic Risk Register. No existing risks have been removed and all risk ratings remain 
unchanged. 

 

Progress against Council Priorities 
 

Driving economic growth 
 

1.13 We have made good progress in areas contributing to the East Sussex Growth Strategy 
during 2016/17. 2,508 additional premises were able to connect to superfast broadband as part 
of our second contract. 41 businesses have been awarded funding as part of East Sussex 
Invest 4; they are expecting to create 130 jobs. 15 companies were supported by Locate East 
Sussex to either start-up or relocate into East Sussex from outside the county, 20 further 
existing companies were supported to relocate within the county. Our bid to the European 
Regional Development Fund (ERDF) to continue, expand and enhance our inward investment 
service was successful; as a result, the budget for Locate East Sussex will be doubled for the 
next three years. A total of 75 apprentices have started during 2016/17, 21 with the Council, 
nine with Costain CH2M and 45 in schools, the current retention rate for apprentices is 92% 
(Appendix 5). 

 

1.14 50% of Council spending in 2016/17 was with local suppliers (against our target of 48%); 
this equates to £196.8m spent with local suppliers (Appendix 3). 

 

1.15 363 online Learndirect and Learn My Way courses were completed in our libraries in 
2016/17. The total was boosted by the introduction of our new IT for You project which aims to 
boost people’s IT skills; IT for You instructors are referring people on to Learndirect and Learn 
My Way courses when they think it’s appropriate (Appendix 5). 

 

1.16 75.7% of all 2 year olds achieved a good level of development in the Early Years 
Foundation Stage, better than the England average of 69.3%. Our Progress 8 score for all 
children at the end of Key Stage 4 was +0.04, above the national score of -0.03. 18.8% of 
Looked After Children (LAC) achieved A*-C in English and maths at Key Stage 4, compared to 
17.5% for England; the Progress 8 score for Looked After Children (LAC) was -1.28, below the 
national score of -1.14. 88.6% of all young people were in education, training, or employment 
with training at academic age 17, exceeding the target of 88%. 71% of LAC were in education, 
training, or employment with training at academic age 17, exceeding the target of 70% 
(Appendix 4). 

 

Keeping vulnerable people safe 
 

1.17 As part of The Portal, which provides help and support for survivors of domestic and 
sexual violence and abuse in Brighton & Hove and East Sussex, a new Domestic Abuse 
Surgery has been set up at the Citizens Advice Bureau in Eastbourne. The surgery offers 
people over the age of 16 specialist information and advice (Appendix 2). 

 

1.18 The average time between a child entering care and moving in with their adoptive family, 
for the three year period 2013-2016, was 517 days against a national average of 558 days 
(Appendix 4). 

 

1.19 114 positive interventions were made in 2016/17 with vulnerable people who have 
become the target of rogue trading or financial abuse. Interventions included; visiting victims of 

Page 19



CABINET 

financial abuse to return cash and bank account details and give them information on ways to 
protect themselves in the future; installing call blockers to the telephone lines of victims being 
persistently targeted by telephone fraudsters; and the Rapid Action Team making interventions 
to stop people becoming victims of rogue traders (Appendix 5). 

 

Helping people help themselves 
 

1.20 The £1m Road Safety programme, to address the high level of people Killed and 
Seriously Injured (KSI) on the county’s roads, has continued to progress well; behavioural 
change experts have begun a detailed analysis of the county’s crash data to identify trends and 
groups who will be amenable to behavioural change. Provisional data shows that there were 
383 KSI on our roads between January and December 2016, with 25 of these fatalities, of these 
50 KSI and three fatalities occurred on trunk roads which are the responsibility of Highways 
England. This is a 10% increase in the number of KSI compared to 2015, and a 14% increase in 
fatalities. Compared to the 2005-2009 average the 2016 totals are a 1% increase in the number 
of KSI, but a 24% reduction in the number of fatalities (Appendix 5). 

 

1.21 East Sussex Better Together (ESBT); plans are in-hand to see us through the 
Accountable Care Organisation transitional year and help inform the development of the formal 
Alliance arrangements by 2018. This includes defining: the Strategic and Locality Planning 
Cycle and Framework; delivery model for year 1; and delivery model for year 2. Further work is 
being undertaken to define and shape the Responsible Authority and business infrastructure 
functions. This will inform the resource requirements needed for the formal Alliance 
arrangements (Appendix 2). 

 

1.22  Our Shared Lives Scheme, which enables shared lives carers to share their home and 
family life with adults who need care and support to live well, was rated as outstanding following 
an inspection by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) in January 2017. Milton Grange Care 
Home, an old peoples home and day service operated by the Council was also rated 
outstanding by the CQC in February 2017 (Appendix 2). 

 

Making best use of resources 
 

1.23  The reduction in the number of papers being printed for meetings, has reduced costs by 
almost £29,000 (59%) in 2016/17 (Appendix 6). 

 

1.24  The total 2016/17 sickness absence outturn for the whole authority (excluding schools) 
was 8.73 days lost per full-time equivalent employee. This is a 4% decrease on the 2015/16 
total. Management and support measures have been implemented to maintain and continue the 
reduction in absence levels (Appendix 3). 

 

1.25  In December 2016 the Orbis Joint Committee and the Council’s Cabinet approved 
Brighton & Hove City Council joining Orbis as a founding partner. Orbis was runner up in the 
Innovation category at the 2017 Institute for Continuous Improvement in Public Services awards 
in March (Appendix 3). 

 

1.26  We have reduced the cost of occupancy of our corporate buildings to £146 per sq metre 
during 2016/17, which is a reduction of more than 2% on last year’s costs, meeting our target 
for the year. The main reductions were secured in energy, where there’s been a 30% reduction 
in spend from 2015/16; service charge costs have been reduced by 40%, and planned 
maintenance spend has been reduced following previous investment programmes (Appendix 3). 

 
2. Reconciling Policy, Performance and Resources – State of the County 
 

2.1 The State of the County report is part of the Council’s Reconciling Policy, Performance 

and Resources (RPPR) process, the Council’s integrated business and financial planning cycle. 
The report sets out the context and provides an overview of the latest position in preparation for 
more detailed planning for 2018/19 and beyond. The Council will spend over £350m net each 
year and it is vital that these resources, in partnership with others, are deployed in the most 
effective way. This starts with being clear about the priority outcomes and the evidence base. 
 
 Page 20



CABINET 

Council Priority Outcomes and Resources 
2.2 The Council’s business and financial planning is underpinned by its four priority outcomes, 
which provide a focus for decisions about spending, savings and direct activity across the Council. 
 
2.3 The current four priority outcomes are: 

 Driving economic growth; 

 Keeping vulnerable people safe;  

 Helping people help themselves and 

 Making best use of resources. 
The priority outcome that the Council makes the “best use of resources” is a test that is applied to 
all activities. The priority outcomes are set out in more detail in Appendix 8. 
 
2.4 The priority outcomes have been developed taking account of a wide range of 
demographic and service need information and feedback from Members, stakeholders and 
service users and are used to direct activity and inform investment. Those services across all 
departments which make the most significant contribution to achieving the outcomes under each 
of the priority areas have been prioritised for investment and, where possible, given relative 
protection from the requirement to make savings. The scale of the savings the Council has 
delivered and the extended period over which savings have been required means, however, that 
the scope for making further savings in non-priority areas is very constrained. 
 
2.5 Cabinet has considered the priority areas and outcomes in the light of the information set 
out in the report. Whilst no substantial changes to the priority outcomes are recommended, it is 
proposed that the priority “driving economic growth” is replaced with “driving sustainable growth”. 
The proposed change of wording is to capture that the breadth of ambition is not just about an 
increase in local businesses but also to ensure East Sussex has the infrastructure, housing, 
environment and skills that will ensure growth is long-term, coherent and comprehensive for all 
residents. Ensuring residents, communities and businesses are prosperous, healthy and more 
resilient will reduce demand for the Council’s services as well as helping them maximise their 
potential. 
 
2.6 Over recent years, the Council has faced significant reductions to one of its core sources 
of funding from Government, the Revenue Support Grant (RSG). In 2010, RSG was £100.2m 
(before other grants were included). In 2018/19, it will have reduced to £15m and by 2020/21 it is 
projected to be zero. This reduction in Government funding, at the same time as increased 
service pressures have required the Council to deliver savings and efficiencies amounting to 
£111.9m between 2010 and 2018. The latest Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) shows savings 
of £21.9m (equivalent to 6% of the net revenue budget) will be required in 2018/19 and a further 
£33.1m over the two years to 2020/21.There is considerable uncertainty about key areas of 
Government funding and policy. The MTFP will therefore continue to be reviewed and updated as 
more information becomes available. 
 
2.7 In addition to reduced Government funding, the County Council has experienced 
increases in demand for services, notably in Adult Social Care (ASC), mainly as a result of a 
growing number of very old people (those aged 85+), and also in Children’s Services due to an 
increasing number of children with statements of Special Educational Needs and Disability 
(SEND) or Education Health and Care Plans (EHCPs). Both the Council and Government have 
invested in ASC and the Council has made provision for pressures in Children’s Services. The 
combination of reduced funding and rising cost pressures mean that, in addition to realising 
efficiency savings, the Council has had to reprioritise its investment in services and reduce the 
extent and breadth of its service offer, with significant impacts in the areas of community based 
ASC services, in the number of family centres, in the universal youth service offer, in the libraries 
and culture offer and the amount spent on the highways network. The scale of the savings the 
Council has needed to make to date and the continued pressure on budgets in the future mean 
that, despite continuing commitment to maximise efficiency and generate income, more direct 
impacts on frontline services across the organisation are unavoidable. 
 

Page 21



CABINET 

Development of the Council’s Medium Term Plans 
2.8 A One Council approach will continue to be taken to developing plans using the following 
principles: 

 Having a collective view of the priority outcomes and investment choices. Using strategic 
commissioning disciplines to direct activities to maximise delivery of the agreed priority 
outcomes. This approach enables the Council to be business-like and test comparative 
returns on investment to ensure the best use of resources is being delivered. It will also help 
ensure savings in one area do not give rise to unforeseen consequences in another area; 

 Building on the existing plans that maximise efficiency, exploit technology, and make the best 
use of all Council assets; 

 Ensuring the right partners are chosen, especially those who will deliver system change and 
the best use of resources; 

 Maximising the resources of East Sussex through strong partnership working, income 
generation, lobbying and exploring new ways of working; 

 Removing management and support costs, wherever possible, to maximise the resources 
available to the frontline; 

 Recognising which areas offer more flexibility and the considerable areas where flexibility is 
limited in the short-term; 

 Sustaining investment in activity that will most help manage demand; 

 Mobilising and encouraging communities to help achieve their priority outcomes; 

 Enabling staff, residents and communities to be creative and courageous, helping them to 
work through uncertainty; and 

 Being open and transparent to provide clarity about priorities and consequences, specifying 
clearly what the County Council will do. 

 
2.9 The next three years will see demand for services continue to rise due to demographic 
pressures. The changes expected to affect Council services are set out in Appendix 9. The key 
issues continue to be: 

 The growth in the very elderly population and their consequent increasingly complex needs; 

 The growth in the number of households in the county and the need to provide suitable 
accommodation for the new and smaller households that will constitute the increase, coupled 
with the affordability gap between house prices and wages, which means that home 
ownership is unachievable for many; 

 The need to provide school places both in the right areas and of the right kind of provision to 
meet demand; 

 The need to keep on creating good quality jobs so that the county’s economy continues to 
improve and to ensure that people have the right skills to take advantage of those jobs, to help 
local residents live prosperous and self-sufficient lives; and 

 The need for a wide range of infrastructure to support the changing needs of the population. 
 
2.10 The national and local context in which the Council’s plans will need to be made is set out 
in Appendix 10. 
 
2.11 The Council’s net income comes from three sources: Council Tax, RSG and business 
rates (or National Non-Domestic Rates – NNDR). RSG comes from Central Government and will 
cease in 2020 (see paragraph 2.5 above). Central Government sets the level of NNDR and 
controls which businesses have to pay it. Council Tax is set locally and can be increased up to a 
threshold set annually by Central Government (any proposed increase over this threshold 
requires public support via a referendum). 
 
2.12 The prospects for the economy as a whole remain uncertain as a result of the potential 
impact of the decision to leave the European Union (EU) and the outcome of the general election. 
There is no reason to believe, however, that the long-term aim of reducing public expenditure as a 
proportion of GDP will change. With continued constraint on tax revenues there is no prospect, 
therefore, for additional funding for most Local Authority functions from Government. 
 

Page 22



CABINET 

2.13 Financially, there are a number of key issues which will impact on the MTFP. Firstly, whilst 
there is speculation that a new Government may not implement its’ predecessor’s plans for 
Councils to retain 100% of locally collected NNDR, it is unlikely that any Government will reverse 
the decision to cease RSG in 2020. This would mean that there will be no funding based on local 
need for Local Authorities and, unless this issue is addressed, specific pressures in demand-led 
services will need to be dealt with by individual Authorities. This would be particularly challenging 
in areas like East Sussex, which have growing demand for services for older people due to its 
demographic profile. The nature of local businesses, which are small and not property based; the 
environmental constraints on growth in the county; and the reliefs offered by Government mean 
that there is unlikely to be a significant increase in Council income from this source in future. It 
would require a 54% increase in NNDR income to cover the £38m savings originally required in 
2017/18 and 2018/19. Growth in NNDR between 2013/14 and 2018/19 was less than £2m. The 
County Council will continue to lobby against the implementation of 100% NNDR retention and in 
favour of a full redistribution of resources between Local Authorities based on need. 
 
2.14 In 2016/17, the Government introduced a number of short-term measures to assist 
Councils with ASC responsibilities, including: 

 ASC Precept – Government has allowed Councils to raise additional Council Tax between 
2017/18 and 2019/20 up to a maximum of 6% over the 3 years. The Council agreed a precept 
of 3% in 2017/18. Planning is currently on the basis of a further 3% in 2018/19, but this would 
mean no further rise in 2019/20; and 

 Specific Grants – these amount to £13.9m in 2017/18, £15.2m in 2018/19 and £18.6m in 
2019/20. No allocations have been indicated for 2020/21 or beyond. 

 
2.15 The previous Government had intended to produce a Green Paper on services for older 
people in the autumn. It is too early to know what the new Government will do or its timescale but 
the importance of addressing current social care and health issues had a high profile during the 
election so action of some sort is anticipated. 
 
2.16 In March 2017, Government acknowledged the pressure that the health and social care 
system is under with a 3-year allocation. The above figures include the 3-year allocation for East 
Sussex of £11m. This was announced after the Budget and MTFP had been set. It is a time 
limited grant with the funding reducing in 2018/19 and 2019/20. The Council’s Constitution 
provides for earmarked revenue budget income, received for a specific purpose, to be spent for 
the purpose it was received so long as the expenditure will not cause additional commitments for 
future years. An adjustment has, therefore, been made to the 2017/18 Budget and MTFP to 
incorporate the funding. The details of this are shown in Appendix 10 paragraphs 4.1 - 4.5. 
 
2.17 If there is no allocation of ASC grant for 2020/21, the Council would lose £18.6m and 
savings would need to be identified to offset this loss. 
 
2.18 Each of the above grants has conditions applied to them, making long-term planning 
difficult. If Government does not address the long-term future of funding for ASC, the loss of these 
grants and inability to raise equivalent funding locally will create a cliff edge in the future. The 
County Council keenly awaits, therefore, the proposals to be made in the Green Paper on the 
future funding of ASC. This will need to set out a sustainable funding solution to meet the growing 
pressures on this critical service. The Council’s resource allocation planning will also need to 
strike an appropriate balance between the needs and resources of ASC and other demand-led 
services for individuals and universal services, such as highways. 
 
2.19 In addition, there are other potential issues and pressures which will need to be taken into 
account in the planning, including the impact of the Schools Fair Funding review and the 
implications for both schools’ and the County Council’s budgets, the costs associated with Looked 
After Children and children with SEND, and the ongoing need for capital investment in transport 
infrastructure and school places. Work will need to continue to ensure a sustainable budget for 
the future. 
 

Page 23



CABINET 

Meeting the Strategic Challenge 
2.20 Each year, the Council identifies the key elements which will help meet the strategic 
challenge over the next planning period; these, along with progress against them, are set out 
below. 

 
 
a)  Cross-Council Facilitating Programmes 
2.21 A summary of the progress on the cross-Council facilitating programmes which will help 
ESCC work most effectively in future years is set out below: 
i)  People Strategy – the People Strategy is being implemented to ensure that staff are attracted, 
developed and retained to serve the residents and businesses of East Sussex. A key issue for the 
Council will be ensuring it maximises the amount it recoups from the Apprenticeship Levy which 
was introduced in 2017/18. The Levy costs the County Council £550,000 and schools £700,000 
per annum. Government has set a national target for the public sector of 2.3% of the workforce 
being apprentices. A key component of the Council’s strategy for recouping the Levy will be the 
conversion of existing workforce and training plans to apprenticeships, where possible, and 
identification of job roles which could be recruited to as apprenticeships. A careful balance will 
need to be struck, however, between achieving the target and the operational needs of the 
Council where there is no apprenticeship standard to match training needs or where the 
requirement for 20% of the training to be away from the workplace creates operational and cost 
difficulties. (see Appendix 10 paragraphs 10.4 - 10.7) 
ii)  Customer Experience and Communications – improvements are continuing to be made to 
the way in which the Council deals with customers and to the recording of performance so that 
customers are served well and consistently, whether services are provided internally or externally. 
This includes improving the Council’s digital offer as part of the Communications Strategy. (see 
Appendix 10 paragraphs 11.1 - 11.4) 
iii)  Orbis and Orbis Public Law – the Council has been expanding and embedding its business 
services partnership – Orbis – with Surrey County Council (SCC) since 2015 (Brighton & Hove 
City Council joined the partnership in May 2017). 
 
2.22 The Orbis Business Plan will see business service budgets across the three Councils 
integrated by April 2018 and services fully-integrated by April 2019. Orbis has made savings of 
£3.4m since its inception and has helped to minimise the savings needed from frontline services. Page 24



CABINET 

The savings from integration alone will, in the main, be exhausted by the end of the second year 
and more transformational change will need to be sought in future. (see Appendix 10 paragraphs 
6.3 - 6.5) 
 
2.23 Orbis Public Law is a joint legal services partnership with Brighton & Hove City Council, 
and Surrey and West Sussex County Councils. The partnership aims to share knowledge and 
expertise, provide resilience in specialist areas and achieve efficiencies. 
Legal Services within East Sussex are already low cost and lean when compared to both public 
and private sector providers. The main advantage of the partnerships is, at a time of increasing 
demand, to ensure greater resilience and expertise is available in specialist areas, such as 
commercial law. (see Appendix 10 paragraphs 6.6 - 6.7) 
 
b)  Maximising Control and Independence 
2.24 In order to be able to plan effectively for the future and to maximise the resources 
available to help local people, the Council is working to ensure as much local control and 
predictability about its resources as possible. This work is supported by the following 
workstreams: 
i)  Commercialisation 
2.25 Over the last three years, Members have focused on optimising the income that could be 
generated from adopting a more business-like and commercialised approach. Work has focused 
across four core areas: 

 Corporate initiatives – looking at how the available resources are managed and working with 
the Borough and District Councils has generated £5.5m of annual benefits to the Council. 

 Traditional fees and charges – reviewing and benchmarking against other County Councils 
with similar population and geographical characteristics showed that the Council performs well 
in terms of generating income per head of population. The limited, new opportunities identified 
from the benchmarking have now been implemented, generating the Council an additional 
£750,000 per annum. 

 Other commercialised activity – the Council has developed/refreshed a number of new trading 
initiatives. 

 Culture – increasing emphasis on engaging staff and encouraging them to be entrepreneurial 
and business-like in the way they work. 

 
2.26 The Council now needs to focus on increasing and expanding the commercial activity 
which drives cost effective use of limited resources. The objective for the coming year will be to 
establish a new strategy focused on commercialisation, with consideration being given to 
opportunities to realise financial returns from property, for example, through acquisition of 
commercial property or through taking development risk on disposal sites. (see Appendix 10 
paragraphs 12.5 - 12.7) 
 
ii)  Partnership, Devolution and Sub-National Transport Body 
2.27 Partners in the East Sussex public, private and voluntary and community sectors have 
worked hard and effectively over a lengthy period to build strong partnerships at both strategic 
and operational levels. There is a commitment and determination to use and develop these 
relationships to make best of the resources, energy and creativity to provide the best possible 
quality of life for current and future residents, communities and businesses in East Sussex. The 
strong local partnerships extend to broader geographical areas where the focus makes that 
appropriate: South East 7, South East Local Economic Partnership, Transport for the South East 
and Orbis all being good examples. 
 
2.28 Work is taking place to develop a Sub-National Transport Body (STB) covering the 
Berkshire Unitary Authorities, Brighton & Hove, East Sussex, Hampshire, the Isle of Wight, Kent, 
Medway, Portsmouth, Southampton, Surrey and West Sussex – named Transport for the South 
East. The STB will require approval by Government and will oversee the delivery of strategic 
transport infrastructure in the area. The STB will provide better engagement with key partners 
including the Department for Transport, Transport for London, Highways England, Network Rail 
than individual Authorities could achieve on their own and will be a key component in achieving 

Page 25



CABINET 

the kind of investment that areas with similar arrangements, such as Transport for the North, have 
secured. A Shadow STB has been established and the Department for Transport has supported 
the establishment of a formal STB. 
 
2.29 The Councils in East Sussex have been working with Local Authorities in Surrey and West 
Sussex (as the Three Southern Counties – 3SC) to negotiate a devolution bid with the previous 
Government as part of the initiative which saw mayors elected in a number of regions in May. The 
previous Government did not prioritise the 3SC bid, preferring to concentrate on metropolitan 
areas and those rural areas where the economy was weaker than the South East. The unique 
aspect promoted by the 3SC bid was that the area is a net contributor to the economy of the 
country, but that its infrastructure is under pressure and that, without significant investment, this 
key engine of the national economy could stall. Development of the broader 3SC programme is 
currently on “pause”, pending a decision from Government about the direction of travel of English 
devolution. The approach taken to date and the groundwork completed has provided the basis for 
the work on the STB and will help partners take advantage of future opportunities in areas such 
as skills. (for devolution see Appendix 10 paragraphs 6.14 - 6.17 and for STB see Appendix 10 
paragraphs 9.5 - 9.10) 
 
iii)  Lobbying 
2.30 The Council has carried out extensive lobbying on areas of concern both to the Council 
and on issues that affect local people. The Council works with decision makers and influencers 
locally, regionally and nationally to make the case for East Sussex. The issues the Council has 
sought to influence over the last year have included Government policy on local economic 
development and skills; housing; transport; infrastructure and fair funding for local services, 
particularly schools and social care. This work will need to continue with the new Government to 
ensure that sustainable services can be provided to local people and the local economy can grow 
and thrive outside the EU. 
 
c)  Service Change Programmes 
2.31 In response to changes in legislation and to assist in delivering savings, the Council has a 
rolling service change programme, established in line with the corporate commissioning model. A 
number of programmes have been completed during the past few years and the impact they are 
having will be monitored and reported to Members, as key indicators and targets, in the Quarterly 
monitoring report. It is through these activities, supported by the cross-Council facilitating 
programmes, that services are reshaped so that they are sustainable in the future. The current 
key programmes are set out below: 
 
Special Educational Needs and Disability 
2.32 Significant changes have taken place within the field of SEND over the last two years 
which have created additional financial pressures. These include statutory changes in provision 
for SEND which increase the age to which the Council must support children and which have 
shifted costs from health to education. At the same time, mainstream and special schools’ 
capacity and willingness to manage pupils’ learning and behaviour effectively has lessened and 
some parents lack confidence in mainstream provision. The introduction of EHCPs has allowed 
health partners to prescribe additional support, often from the independent sector. These changes 
have increased the demand for statements of SEND/EHCPs, specialist school placements and 
post-16 provision, which have increased costs significantly. 
 
2.33 The Council has recognised these pressures in setting its budget for 2017/18 and has also 
invested significantly in work to address the underlying causes. These are: 

 Building capacity and inclusive ethos in mainstream schools; 

 Improving parental confidence in local provision; 

 Implementing the East Sussex post-16 pathways, ceasing EHCPs where they are not required 
and strengthening young people’s targets for independence and academic progression to 
ensure they are ready for transition when they are old enough; 

 Increasing the number of local special school places through the development of specialist 
facilities in mainstream or Free Schools; and 

Page 26



CABINET 

 Working with partners, such as East Sussex Better Together and Connecting 4 You, to take a 
joined-up approach to planning the use of resources available. 

There is a significant risk that this work, which relies on influencing behaviour of parents, schools 
and others, will not be successful, particularly under the proposed National Funding Formula for 
schools, which will prevent additional money being moved between schools’ and the Local 
Authority budget. As such, if the Council’s costs increase as it is paying for placements because 
mainstream schools exclude children with SEND, there will no way of recouping the funding from 
the schools funding block. (see Appendix 10 paragraphs 2.1 - 2.4) 
 
Adult Social Care – East Sussex Better Together and Connecting For You 
2.34 Almost half of the Council’s net revenue budget is spent on ASC. It is an area which is 
demand-led and where the increasingly ageing population means that significantly increased 
funding will be needed year-on-year to maintain the same level of services provision. The high 
proportion of spend in this area has meant that ASC has had to make a contribution to the 
Council’s savings. Over the past 5 years, the Council has cut funding in non-priority services 
within ASC, reduced care packages delivered to those receiving a service by an average of 30% 
and cut funding to those areas of early intervention and prevention work least likely to increase 
demand for more expensive services in the long-term. Government has taken some measures to 
assist with short-term funding (see paragraph 2.14 above and Appendix 10) and, while this has 
helped mitigate some of the savings needed in the current financial year, it does not fully meet the 
growth in demand. 
 
2.35 Locally, the Council has been working with health partners to make the best use of 
resources available, currently in two programmes, East Sussex Better Together (ESBT) and 
Connecting For You (C4Y). 
 
 
ESBT 
2.36 The ESBT partnership comprises: 

 Eastbourne, Hailsham and Seaford CCG; 

 Hastings and Rother CCG; 

 ESCC; 

 East Sussex Healthcare NHS Trust; and 

 Sussex Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 
 
2.37 The aim of the partnership is to integrate prevention, primary and community care, social 
care, mental health, acute and specialist care so that demand for acute services is reduced and 
more people can get the services they need in their local communities. This will help to ensure the 
best use is made of the £850m budget for health and social care in the ESBT area. 
 
2.38 A joint strategic investment plan has been agreed by ESCC and the two CCGs to deliver 
financial sustainability for the whole health and social care system through to 2021. A formal 
Alliance has been formed for 2017 by the partners to make progress on integration and to start to 
implement the plan. The next steps to achieve this transformation will be to build a new model of 
accountable care, through the ESBT Alliance, which integrates the whole health and social care 
system. 2017/18 will be a transition year, to test out the most effective ways of working together to 
provide the best and most sustainable services for local people. (see Appendix 10 paragraphs 5.1 
- 5.6) 
 
C4Y 
2.39 The C4Y programme is being developed in partnership with High Weald Lewes Havens 
(HWLH) CCG to address the specific needs of the population within that area and the challenges 
to delivering sustainable NHS and social care services. The programme was put in place following 
the withdrawal of the HWLH CCG from the ESBT programme in 2016 and within the context of 
the need to explore integration between health and social care. 
 

Page 27



CABINET 

2.40 The programme is at an earlier stage of development than ESBT and has, to date, 
focused on promoting health and wellbeing, preventing avoidable ill-health and co-ordinating 
support services, including technology, equipment and accommodation, so that people can live 
independently in their own homes. It is the intention this year for the Council and the CCG to 
develop a joint Strategic Investment Plan for 2018/19. (see Appendix 10 paragraphs 5.7 - 5.10) 
 
2.41 The above service change programmes are well-developed and have made good 
progress in addressing challenges and sustaining critical services in a difficult financial 
environment. By their nature they have inherent risks and, in respect of demand-led services, they 
tend to mitigate rather than remove pressures. In addition, it should be noted that the ambition of 
ESBT for a whole-system accountable care model is unprecedented in the UK and, therefore, the 
risks to achievement of that ambition are considerable. They remain, however, the right thing to 
do and, with active risk management, the Council can continue its track record of successful 
delivery. 
 
Highways 
2.42 In 2016, the Council entered into a new contract for highways maintenance services. The 
contract, with an estimated value of £300m over 7 years, provides maintenance to the same 
policies as the previous arrangements. Payment for these services depends on the contractors 
meeting performance metrics associated with Council policies. 
 
2.43 Despite a reducing highways maintenance budget, capital investment decisions since 
2012 have raised the condition of A, B and C roads and the future investment profile aims to 
maintain the network at these current condition levels. For the unclassified road network, initial 
investment has improved the condition and the future investment profile also aims to maintain the 
network at this condition. 
 
Capital Programme and Reserves 
2.44 Due to the ongoing financial pressures the Council is facing, the Capital Programme 
2017/23, as agreed at Full Council on 7 February 2017, focuses on a strategy to deliver core need 
as efficiently as possible. This programme was added to the existing current programme. 
 
2.45 The areas of essential core need included in the 2017-2023 programme are: 

 Schools Places (early years, primary, secondary and special); 

 Highways Structural Maintenance, Bridge Strengthening; Street Lighting; 

 Highways, Rights of Way and Bridge Replacement Programme; 

 Property Building Maintenance; 

 ICT Strategy; and 

 Adults’ and Children’s House Adaptations Programme. 
 
2.46 In addition to the core need, there are a number of other fully funded schemes which are 
either funded through the South East Local Enterprise Partnership, or for the provision of grants 
and loans. These were originally pump primed in the 2013-2018 programme and include the 
Economic Intervention Fund which, by 2021/22, will become self-funding. 
 
2.47 As part of the National Productivity Investment Fund announced at the 2016 Autumn 
Statement, East Sussex was awarded a grant of £2.13m for transport schemes which help to 
tackle areas of low productivity in the Economy. This funding is additional to the agreed Capital 
Programme and must be used in 2017/18. Options for use of the funding to relieve congestion in 
the County have been considered and it is proposed that the grant is used to replace the single 
lane Exceat Bridge with a new two lane bridge. Essential repairs to the existing bridge are in the 
existing Capital Programme, but only on the basis of a single lane bridge, which is a bottleneck for 
traffic. The funding would allow a new two lane bridge to be constructed. Other schemes have 
also been considered, such as the extension of the bus corridor on the A259 and a package of 
measures in the A22/A26 corridors, but none are sufficiently advanced to enable construction 
within the timescale. (see appendix 10 paragraph 12.29). 
 

Page 28



CABINET 

2.48 The approved programme has now been updated to include the Quarter 4 position and 
other approved variations, the details of which are set out Appendix 10. 
 
2.49 As part of the RPPR process, the Council’s reserves policy has been updated and the 
Strategic Reserves realigned to better support the Council Plan and MTFP. Full details are 
provided at the end of Appendix 10. 
 
Engagement and Communications 
2.50  Engagement and communications will take place on both the Council’s overall position 
and specific proposals as they emerge with the public, partners, staff and stakeholders. Members 
will be engaged through Council, Cabinet and Scrutiny in the development of priorities, service 
change, spending and savings options. There is a commitment to be as open as possible, as 
early as possible, with services users, stakeholders and the public about changes to the services 
that can be provided. 
 
 
RPPR Next Steps 
2.51 The County Council agreed savings targets for services for 2018/19 and the areas from 
which these savings will be sought at its meeting in February (slightly amended details of which 
are provided at Appendix 11). The latest MTFP has confirmed this requirement. The Cabinet has 
agreed that Chief Officers be asked to continue to refine proposals for 2018/19 in line with the 
plan agreed by Council in February, and bring initial high-level proposals for the following two 
years for consideration by Cabinet in October prior to review by Scrutiny and decision-making in 
January/February. 
 
2.52 The message presented by this State of the County review is, in many ways, a familiar 
one. There are huge challenges with growing need, public and service user expectations, less 
money and reducing opportunities for efficiencies, and the Council will therefore need to continue 
to be relentless in its pursuit of value for money and alternative sources of funding, be bold in the 
extent of its partnership working across and beyond East Sussex, and be very focused in its 
prioritisation and funding of services. This means being very clear about the outcomes that will be 
delivered, while acknowledging there will inevitably need to be further reductions in the breadth 
and quality of some services. The Council has a strong track record in working in this climate and 
can be confident that, with continued focus and energy, it can continue to deliver well for the 
future. 
 
2.53 The Cabinet recommends the County Council to –  
 

 1) agree to the priority outcome “driving economic growth” being replaced with “driving 
sustainable growth” as set out in paragraph 2.5 above. 

 
 
3. Scrutiny Review of Educational Attainment at Key Stage 4 
 
3.1 The Cabinet has considered a report of the Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee on its 
review of educational attainment at Key Stage 4. The report is included elsewhere on the agenda 
(see agenda item 7).  
 
3.2 Following a detailed discussion on the barriers that secondary schools face to sustain 
improvement in educational attainment, the Review Board decided to focus on issues relating to 
the recruitment and retention of teachers and its potential impact on attainment. The Committee’s 
report focuses on the relationship between recruitment and retention and educational attainment 
with a view to providing practical recommendations to assist schools with the recruitment 
challenges they face.  
 
3.3 The leadership for school improvement now sits with schools, and they are increasingly 
demonstrating their collective commitment to whole-system improvement. As schools work 

Page 29



CABINET 

together to build a sector-led improvement system, the local authority will continue to provide 
support in order to discharge its responsibilities to: 

 

 Act as champion of children, young people and their parents, in particular the most 
vulnerable and disadvantaged. 

 Promote high standards of education and have high expectations for the outcomes of all 
groups of pupils. 

 Safeguard and promote the welfare of children. 
 

3.4 The role and responsibility of the Regional School Commissioner (RSC) in raising 
education attainment is as follows: 

 taking action where academies and free schools are underperforming or 
where governance is inadequate 

 deciding on applications from LA maintained schools to convert to academy status 

 improving underperforming maintained schools by providing them with support from a 
strong sponsor 

 encouraging and deciding on applications from sponsors to operate in a region 

 taking action to improve poorly performing sponsors 

 advising on proposals for new free schools 

 advising on whether to cancel, defer or enter into funding agreements with free school 
projects 

 deciding on applications to make significant changes to academies and free schools  

 
3.5 In welcoming the findings of the Scrutiny Committee, the Cabinet has considered a report 
by the Director of Children’s Services on the specific recommendations and endorsed it as its 
response to the recommendations (as set out in Appendix 12). The Scrutiny Review has provided 
a useful insight into the attainment at Key Stage 4 and the issues related to the retention and 
recruitment of teaching staff in East Sussex. The report made six recommendations which cover 
the recruitment and retention of teaching staff with a greater emphasis on retaining staff. The 
recommendations provide the opportunity to address leadership and teacher shortages in our 
schools and the department’s responses are set out in the action plan.  This recognises the role of 
the Local Authority in delivering school improvement and supports the Department’s Excellence 
for All strategy.  
 
3.6 The Cabinet, in welcoming the report, recommends the County Council to –  
 

 approve the response of the Director of Children’s Services on the implementation of the 
recommendations in the Scrutiny Committee’s report.  
  

 
4. Scrutiny Review of Superfast Broadband 
 
4.1 The Cabinet has considered a report of the Economy, Transport and Environment Scrutiny 
Committee on its review of Superfast Broadband in East Sussex. The report is included 
elsewhere on the agenda (see item 8). 

 
4.2 The County Council established an infrastructure project to improve broadband coverage 
in the County in response to Government’s Superfast Broadband Programme (formerly the Rural 
Broadband Programme). A Local Broadband Plan was agreed by the Cabinet on 6 March 2012, 
which sought to increase access to superfast broadband in the parts of the County where 
commercial telecoms infrastructure providers were not planning to deliver upgrades as part of 
their own investment plans. At that time only 3% of premises had access to superfast services 
and private sector investment was planned for more densely populated, predominantly urban 
areas where the business case for investors is less challenging (for example Hastings, 
Eastbourne, Hailsham, Uckfield, Bexhill; Battle, Castleham; Lewes, Crowborough, Hampden Page 30



CABINET 

Park, Polegate, Newhaven, Peacehaven, Seaford exchange areas) although it should be noted 
that the project has done infill, in particular to business parks, in pockets in such exchange areas 
that the private sector has left behind. 

4.3 The Council used a national framework agreement and signed a contract with British 
Telecom (BT) Group in May 2013 to deliver a 3 year programme of infrastructure improvements. 
This was funded by £15m from the Council’s capital programme, a £10.64m contribution from 
Broadband Delivery UK and a £4.4m contribution from BT. 

4.4  The Economy, Transport and Environment Scrutiny Committee established a Scrutiny 
Review of Superfast Broadband at its meeting on 16 March 2016. This followed representations 
from County Councillors who expressed residents’ concerns about the delivery of the Broadband 
Project. These concerns were: 

 Broadband speeds have not improved for some residents and small businesses, despite 
being connected to fibre enabled services; 

 Broadband speeds are slow at peaks times of demand; 

 Coverage has not reached all residents and premises and some have been left with slow 
or no broadband; 

 In a number of cases, the provision of information concerning the timing and availability of 
superfast broadband to particular premises was not available.  
 

4.5 The Scrutiny Review of Superfast Broadband is welcomed by the Communities, Economy 
and Transport Department as it provides a timely opportunity to review the progress of the 
Broadband Project, and examines the issues that lie behind resident’s concerns. The Department 
is confident that it has also enabled a wider understanding of the engineering and technical 
challenges involved in the successful delivery of the contract with BT (Contract 1), and the 
additional work being planned and delivered through subsequent contracts (Contract 2 and, 
subject to award, Contract 3) to further increase superfast broadband coverage.   

4.6 In welcoming the findings of the Scrutiny Committee, the Cabinet has considered a report 
by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport on the specific recommendations and 
endorsed it as its response to the recommendations (as set out in Appendix 13).The Scrutiny 
Review has provided a thorough examination of the concerns expressed by residents about the 
Superfast Broadband Project, and makes a number of practical recommendations to provide 
solutions. 

4.7 The Cabinet, in welcoming the report, recommends the County Council to –  
 

 approve the response of the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport on the 
implementation of the recommendations in the Scrutiny Committee’s report  

 

27 June 2017                 KEITH GLAZIER   
(Chair) 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



GOVERNANCE 
 

  

   

REPORT OF THE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
The Governance Committee met on 27 June 2017. Attendances: 
 
Councillor Glazier (Chair)  
Councillors Daniel, Elkin, Simmons and Tutt  
 
1. Amendment to Constitution –  Transport and Student Support Panel 
 
1.1 The Transport and Student Support Panel was created when the School 
Transport Panel merged with the Awards Panel.  Its purpose is to determine travel 
arrangements (under discretionary powers) for children who are not otherwise 
eligible and to award financial payments to further and higher education students to 
assist them with their studies. 
 

1.2 The further education and higher education landscape has changed 
significantly in recent years. Higher education loans and grants are now administered 
by Student Finance England (formerly Student Loan Company) and financial support 
to further education students is dealt with by the education provider through Bursary 
Schemes. These superseded Education Maintenance Allowances (EMA) which were 
phased out in 2012. 
 

1.3 The ‘student support’ function of the Panel is therefore obsolete and there is the 
need to amend the terms of reference to reflect this. There remains the need to have in 
place a review/appeals procedure for parents/carers to follow should they have a 
disagreement about the eligibility of their child for travel support. 
 

1.4    The Transport and Student Support Panel is constituted for this purpose. 
However, its name is ambiguous and the Panel has expressed a wish to rename this 
Panel to make its role clearer for parents. It is therefore proposed to change the 
name of the Panel to the Discretionary Transport Appeal Panel. 
 
1.5 It is proposed the terms of reference of the Panel, as set out in Part 3 of the 
Constitution be amended as follows: 
 
 

 Discretionary Transport Appeal and Student Support Panel  

 
 Terms of Reference  
 
 (i)   To exercise the powers and duties of the County Council in relation to (i) the 
provision or payment of boarding and tuition allowances for individual pupils and (ii) 
awards to individual students for further and higher education, in both instances where 
the Director of Children’s Services refers the case to the Panel for resolution rather than 
dealing with it under their delegated powers.  
 
 (ii)  To consider individual cases and make arrangements on behalf of the County 
Council to pay for or provide transport to and from an education provider school for pupils 
and students whom the Director of Children’s Services does not consider to qualify either 
statutorily or under the normal policy of the County Council for such transport.  
 
 Membership  
 
 Three members of the Regulatory Committee.  

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



GOVERNANCE 
 

  

 

 
1.6     The Committee recommends the County Council:  
 

  (1) to agree to the Constitution being amended as set out in paragraph 1.5 above. 

 
 27 June  2017       KEITH GLAZIER 
        (Chair) 

Page 34



CHILDREN’S SERVICES 

 

REPORT OF THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR  

CHILDREN’S SERVICES  

___________________________________________________________________ 

The Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee met on 20 March 2017. 

Present: Councillors Kathryn Field (Chair), Stephen Shing (Vice-Chair), Kim 
Forward, Roy Galley, Alan Shuttleworth, Barry Taylor and Francis Whetstone, 
Councillor Julian Peterson (Borough and District Representative) Dr Ann Holt and 
Simon Parr (Diocesan Representatives).   

Also present:  Councillors Nick Bennet, (Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, 
Special Educational Needs and Disability) and Councillor Sylvia Tidy (Lead Member for 
Children & Families).  

1. Scrutiny Review of Review Educational Attainment at Key Stage 4  

1.1 The Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee has completed its Scrutiny 
Review of Educational Attainment at Key Stage 4.   A copy of the Committee’s full 
report is attached as Appendix 1.  
 

1.2  The Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee decided a scrutiny review of Key 
Stage 4 Educational Attainment was timely as it would build on previous reviews of 
educational attainment.      More specifically, and following a discussion of the 
barriers to sustained improvements in educational attainment, it was decided to 
focus on issues relating to teacher recruitment and retention.  The Board agreed 
therefore that it would explore the issues/challenges schools and academies face in 
relation to the recruitment and retention of teachers and its potential impact on 
attainment.  

1.3 The Board identified a wide range of issues which contribute to the pressures 
local schools are facing when trying to both recruit and retain existing teaching staff.   
These include:   

 Secondary school population increase.  The secondary school 
population is projected to increase to 3.04 million by 2020 and further 
until 2025 when it will peak at 3.33 million.  The implication of this 
projection is that unless class sizes increase, a significantly higher 
number of secondary teachers will be needed in the coming years.   

 Workload Pressure and Accountability.   The Board considered 
evidence from both local and national sources relating to workload 
pressure as an issue impacting on teacher recruitment and retention 
rates.   At senior teacher levels, the issue of accountability, and 
especially the implications of Ofsted judgements and school 
performance was seen by many as being a significant factor in 
recruitment.  

 East Sussex as a place to live and work.    There may also be issues 
which are peculiar to East Sussex.   For example, East Sussex is a 
coastal authority.  This means the county does not have access to the 
same number of potential recruits living in neighbouring areas 
compared to a ‘landlocked’ authority.   East Sussex also has relatively 
high number of rural schools and recruiting to such schools can be 
more challenging (smaller schools can be perceived as having less 
career development prospects).   
 

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



CHILDREN’S SERVICES 

 

1.4 Having identified the above factors, consideration was then given to the types 
of teacher recruitment and retention problems these pressures are causing.   These 
include:  

 Subject specific issues.    Evidence from national and local sources 
indicates that there are subjects where recruitment is more challenging.   
For example, many schools report problems with finding staff to teach 
maths, science and English.  In addition to these more widely known 
challenges, many schools also struggle to recruit teachers for 
geography and history.   

 Leadership roles.    The Board were presented with evidence relating 
to the importance of leadership roles and the shortages schools often 
have in this area.  Evidence considered indicated that these shortages 
maybe set to increase and are most acute within secondary schools.  

1.5 The Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee recommends to the County 
Council –  

East Sussex Teacher Recruitment and Retention Strategy 2015-2017 

1.5.1   Additional work is undertaken to understand the scale of the recruitment 
challenge in East Sussex.   This would help the Children’s Services Department and 
local schools establish clear targets for teacher recruitment and in turn, enable 
progress to be effectively monitored. 

1.5.2   More focus is given to the retention of existing teaching staff.  This would 
include developing a clearer understanding of why teachers are leaving the 
profession and whether there are factors which are specific to East Sussex.     

Succession planning and leadership 

1.5.3 Work is undertaken to identify those schools with effective succession 
planning policies.  

1.5.4 Having identified the range of successful policies which local schools have   
adopted, work is undertaken to update the current succession planning policy 
statement and to actively promote the new succession planning policy with 
governing boards and local schools. This would mean that governing boards and 
schools are better placed to promote suitably trained and motivated teachers to 
leadership roles at all levels as vacancies become available.   

Recruitment Strategy - East Sussex as a unique place to live and work 

1.5.5 The Education Secretary’s announcement of the expansion of the 
‘Opportunity Areas Programme’ to include Hastings and the further funding it attracts 
be investigated as a possible resource for improving teacher recruitment and 
retention rates.   

1.5.6   Where appropriate, the scope of the investigation into the viability of 
developing housing projects as a way of attracting teachers as ‘key workers’ is 
widened; this should include exploring with all local borough and district councils the 
potential for including teachers as key workers within plans for future affordable 
housing projects. 

Broadening the scope of the recruitment strategy 

1.5.7  Consideration should be given to broadening the scope of the recruitment and 
retention strategy so as to explore other potential sources of recruitment and aligning 
these proposed developments within the ‘Find Your Spark’ recruitment campaign.  
This could include:  Page 36



CHILDREN’S SERVICES 

 

a)  activities aimed at inspiring young people within our local schools to 
become teachers; and    

b) finding ways of encouraging parents who might be interested in teaching as 
a career.   

Partnership working between schools 

1.5.8  Schools should be encouraged to work together to find innovative ways to 
develop teacher training models which share resources and good practice, are cost-
effective and produce quality teachers which meet the needs of our schools.  Such 
partnership working should be encouraged and promoted by the Children’s Services 
Department through the Schools Direct and SCITT programmes.    

 

Broadening the geographical area of search for recruits 

1.5.9 Work is undertaken to investigate developing an ‘East Sussex Ambassador’ 
role.  This role would involve the Ambassador travelling to recruitment fairs across 
the country to promote East Sussex as a place to live and work.  The role would 
require partnership working between schools, as the Ambassador role could be 
performed by appropriately trained senior staff and/or governors from different 
schools. 

  

20 March 2017       KATHRYN FIELD 

Chair    
   
  

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



ECONOMY, TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT 

 

REPORT OF THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR  

ECONOMY, TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT  

___________________________________________________________________ 

The Economy, Transport and Environment Scrutiny Committee met on 15 March 
2017. 

Present: Councillors Richard Stogdon (Chair), Mike Pursglove (Vice-Chair), Pat 
Rodohan, Judy Roger, Rosalyn St. Pierre and Barry Taylor. 

Also present: Councillors Chris Dowling (Lead Member for Community Services), 
Carl Maynard (Lead Member for Transport & Environment), and Rupert 
Simmons (Lead Member for Economic Development) 

 

1. Scrutiny Review of Superfast Boradband 

1.1 The Economy, Transport and Environment (ETE) Scrutiny Committee has 
completed its Scrutiny Review of Superfast Broadband. A copy of the Committee’s 
full report is attached as Appendix 1 and has been circulated to all Members. 
 
1.2 In 2012, Cabinet agreed a Broadband Plan to invest £15m from the Council’s 
capital programme (alongside £10.64m of funding from Broadband Delivery UK and 
£4.4m from British Telecom) to provide the infrastructure necessary to enable 
access to superfast broadband across the County.  
 
1.3 A three year contract was signed with BT Group in May 2013 to deliver this 
infrastructure (Contract 1), with a target of providing access to 90% of premises. A 
second contract was signed with British Telecom (BT) Group in June 2015 to extend 
superfast broadband coverage to a further 7,000 premises (Contract 2) to reach the 
target of access to 95% of premises.  
 
1.4 East Sussex County Council (ESCC) Councillors raised a number of 
residents’ and businesses’ concerns about the delivery of these contracts with the 
Economy, Transport and Environment Scrutiny Committee, namely: 

 Broadband speeds have not improved for some residents and small 
businesses, despite being connected to the new superfast, fibre enabled 
infrastructure; 

 Broadband speeds are slow at peaks times of demand; 

 Coverage has not reached all residents and premises and some have been 
left with slow or no broadband; 

 Provision of information concerning the timing and availability of superfast 
broadband has been poor, and precise information about when or whether 
superfast broadband will be provided to particular premises is not available. 

  
1.5 The Scrutiny Review examined what has been delivered so far under Contract 
1 with BT Group, and whether the roll out of Contract 2 will address residents’ 
concerns about broadband speeds and coverage. It also looked at the future 
provision planned under the Broadband Project, whether residents’ expectations of 
the project were realistic, and the project communication. 
 
 

Page 39

Agenda Item 8



ECONOMY, TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT 

 

1.6 The Review found that: 
 
1.6.1 Broadband Speeds 

 There is evidence that some residents and businesses are not aware of 
improved broadband access in their areas, or the need to change broadband 
package in order to get faster broadband speeds. 

 Users need to choose their Internet Service Provider (ISP) carefully and 
subscribe to the right package in order to achieve the speeds and 
performance that they require. 

1.6.2 Broadband Coverage 

 The delivery of first contract (Contract 1) has achieved and exceeded its 
objectives in terms of coverage and the number of premises enabled to 
receive superfast broadband. However, there were a number of areas in the 
County at the end of Contract 1 that did not have access to superfast 
broadband. 

 The Broadband Team is tackling slower broadband speeds due to long 
lengths of cabling, and is providing solutions for those affected as well as 
increasing coverage through the roll out of the second contract (Contract 2). 

 It has not been possible to provide superfast broadband to some of the 
hardest to reach premises, and a third contract (Contract 3) is planned to get 
to as close to 100% coverage as possible. 

1.6.3 Provision for those without Superfast Broadband 

 In order to address the issue of fairness and equality of access, some match 
funding may be required for community based solutions for those premises 
that will not be covered by the Broadband Project. 

 Officers are hopeful that this will not be necessary, but ESCC funding could 
be provided by using some of the Gainshare income from Contracts 1 and 2. 

1.6.4 Residents’ Expectations and Project Communications 

 The Review concluded that there have been a number of misunderstandings 
and misconceptions about the purpose of the Broadband Project, which have 
contributed to unrealistic expectations by the public of what the Project can 
deliver. 

 There is a need to undertake an additional phase of communication activity 
now that first contract of the project has been completed. ESCC needs to 
communicate clearly that: 

o the Project is still ongoing with details of what is being done and when;  
o the Project may not provide superfast broadband access for all 

premises with the funding it has available; 
o there are options available to get better broadband for those who may 

find themselves without superfast services once the Project is 
completed; and 

o there are other factors that affect broadband speed, beyond the control 
of the Project. 

  

Page 40



ECONOMY, TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT 

 

1.7 The Economy, Transport and Environment Scrutiny Committee recommends 
to the County Council –  
 

1.7.1 Further steps are taken to: 

a. Communicate when faster speeds are available as the project rollout 
continues; 

b. Provide additional advice to residents and businesses about checking 
speeds, selecting an Internet Service Provider (ISP) and information on 
other factors that affect broadband speeds; and 

c. Make it easier for residents and businesses to check for themselves the 
broadband coverage and the speed they can receive. 

1.7.2 Details of coverage, including maps, are published at the end of Contract 2 
and further information is provided to explain how and why finite funding levels may 
prevent the project from enabling superfast broadband access for some harder to 
reach premises. 

1.7.3 Information is provided at the earliest opportunity outlining those premises 
that may not be ‘connected’ to superfast broadband and that the survey results are 
made available to communities and smaller suppliers to encourage the development 
of alternative delivery methods. 

1.7.4 Once the total cost of providing superfast broadband to the remaining 
premises is known (or can be estimated), the Broadband Team clarifies how those 
premises receiving the slowest speeds will be prioritised in the context of the 
remaining available budget. 

1.7.5 When, and if necessary, a ‘community match’ type funding programme is 
established for communities to bid into to pay for community based broadband 
schemes, in order to provide access for some of the hardest to reach premises not 
covered by the project, and a ‘toolkit’ is developed for communities who wish to 
implement their own broadband schemes. 

1.7.6 Councillors, business organisations, and Parish Councils are encouraged to 
contact the Broadband Team with details of any Business Parks that do not have 
access to superfast broadband, so they can be included in the project rollout. 

1.7.7 Lessons are learnt about the management of expectations when embarking 
upon complex projects of this nature, and to avoid “hype” at the outset, so that there 
is a careful distinction between aspirations or vision statements and the actual 
projected outcomes. 

1.7.8 A phased communication plan is developed to address the expectations of 
residents and businesses in the County regarding the Broadband Project and 
recommendations 1, 2 and 3 of the review. The plan should include enhancement of 
information available, including: 

a. A revision of the web site design and information so that project rollout 
information, frequently asked questions, and other project information is 
provided more clearly on the Go East Sussex, e-Sussex and ESCC web 
sites;  

Page 41



ECONOMY, TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT 

 

b. An information pack (including information sources to check speeds, ISP 
service offers and availability etc.) produced to assist ESCC Councillors, 
Parish Councils and Community Leaders when dealing with broadband 
issues in their Division or area; and 

c. A fact sheet created to address misconceptions about the Broadband 
Project and some of the frequently asked questions. 

 

 [See also Report of the Cabinet – 6 June 2017]  

 

 

15 MARCH 2017 RICHARD STOGDON  

Chair     
    

Page 42



 
 STANDARDS 

 

REPORT OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

 

The Standards Committee met on 6 June 2016. 
 
Present Councillor Earl (in the Chair),  
  Councillors Daniel Shing, Taylor and Tutt  
 
1. Annual Report of the Standards Committee 
 
1.1 Between 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 one complaint was received 
against a   Member of the County Council.  The complaint was considered by the 
Assessment Sub Committee.  The Assessment Sub Committee decided to refer the 
case to the Monitoring Officer for action other than an investigation namely that an 
apology should be issued.   
 
1.2 It is considered that the standards of conduct among Members and co-opted 
members of the Council remain high and maintaining good standards is taken 
seriously. The table below shows the number of complaints considered by the 
Assessment Sub Committee over the past 8 years: 
 

Year No. of 
complaints 
considered 

2016/17 1 

2015/16 1 

2014/15 3 

2013/14 1 

2012/13 1 

2011/12 1 

2010/11 2 

2009/10 4 

 
 
Applications for Dispensation 
 
1.3 In limited circumstances, Members can apply in writing for dispensations to 
take part in business that they would otherwise have been unable to participate in 
through having prejudicial interests. During 2016/17 there were no applications for 
dispensations.  
 
1.4 All dispensations are entered on the register of Members’ interests and 
remain there for the appropriate period. 
 
Register of Members’ Interests 
 
1.5 The Monitoring Officer is required to establish and maintain a register of 
interests of Members of the Council. All Members have completed and returned their 
registers and are reminded every six months of the need to notify the Monitoring 

Page 43

Agenda Item 9



 
 STANDARDS 

 

Officer of any changes. The registers are available for public inspection and are 
available on the Council’s website. 
 
1.6 A register of Gifts and Hospitality is also maintained by the Monitoring Officer. 
Members have to register gifts and hospitality received with an estimated value of 
£50 or more. Councillors are reminded every 6 months of the need to declare gifts 
and hospitality of such a value.  
 
1.7 There is an ongoing requirement to keep the information of the register of 
interest form up to date. Councillors must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any 
new registerable personal interest or change to any registered interest, give written 
notification to the Monitoring Officer.  
 
Training 
 
1.8 Following the election on 4 May 2017, the Code of Conduct including register 
of interests, personal interests, disclosable pecuniary interests and gifts and 
hospitality, were covered during presentation at the Induction Day on 10 May 2017.  
All councillors have signed a declaration undertaking to comply with the County 
Council’s Code of Conduct for Members.  
 
 
1.09 The Committee recommends the County Council to –  
 

 agree the Annual Report  
 
 
 
STUART EARL       6 June 2017 
In the Chair 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 23 May 2017
	5 Report of the Cabinet
	6 Report of the Governance Committee
	7 Report of the Children's Services Scrutiny Committee
	8 Report of the Economy, Transport and Environment Scrutiny Committee
	9 Report of the Standards Committee

